
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, 
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, 
DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS, 
STATE OF FLORIDA, 

Plaintiff, 
vs. 

ROBERT J. VITALE, 

CASE NO.: 

THE CAMBRIDGE LAND TRUST COMPANY, L.L.C., 
and THE HARTFORD LAND TRUST COMPANY, L.L.C., 

Defendants. _________________________________________ / 

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT 
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

JURISDICTION and VENUE 

1 

1. This action is brought pursuant to Florida's Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices 

Act, Chapter 501, Part II, Florida Statutes ("FDUTPA"). Plaintiff is an enforcing authority of 

FDUTPA and is authorized by § 501.207(1)(a), Fla. Stat., to bring an action to obtain a 

declaratory judgment that an act or practice violates FDUTP A. The Attorney General further is 

authorized by § 501.207(1)(b), Fla. Stat., to bring an action to enjoin any person who has 

violated, is violating, or is otherwise likely to violate FDUTPA and by § 501.207(3), Fla. Stat., to 

obtain further equitable relief as appropriate. 
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2. 

FDUTPA. 

3. 

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 26.012 and 

Venue is proper in the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit as the statutory violations 

alleged herein occurred in or affected more than one judicial circuit in the State of Florida while 

the residence of Defendant Robert J. Vitale and the principal places of business of Defendants 

The Cambridge Land Trust Company, LLC and The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC are in 

Broward County, Florida. 

4. Defendant Robert J. Vitale is a resident of Florida, is not in the military and is 

otherwise sui juris. 

5. Plaintiff has conducted an investigation and the head of the enforcing authority, 

Attorney General Pamela Jo Bondi, has determined that an enforcement action serves the public 

interest. See Exhibit A attached hereto. 

The Cambridge Land Trust Company, LLC 

6. Defendant The Cambridge Land Trust Company, LLC ("Cambridge") was 

organized under the laws of Florida on or about March 28, 2012 and has maintained a principal 

place of business at 4337 Sea Grape Drive, Lauderdale by the Sea, Florida since its organization. 

According to records filed with the Florida Secretary of State, Cambridge's managers/members 

are Cambridge Partners and RJV Investments, LLC. Defendant Robert J. Vitale is the owner 

and/or manager and/or person in control of Cambridge Partners and/or RJV Investments, LLC. 

7. Cambridge acquires title to a Florida homeowner's residence for no or nominal 

consideration through a deed which transfers the title of the residence to Cambridge or another 

entity controlled by Defendant Vitale. In transferring title, the Florida homeowner is relying on 

Cambridge's direct or indirect representations that Cambridge can annul or otherwise cancel the 
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homeowner's mortgage. In addition, the homeowner is required to pay directly or indirectly 

advance fees to Cambridge. 

8. Cambridge's legal basis for the putative cancelation of a homeowner's duly 

recorded mortgage is frivolous. Despite the clear principles of law of JP Morgan Chase v. New 

Millennia!, LC, 6 So. 3d 681, 685 (2d DCA 2009), review dismissed, 10 So. 3d 632 (Fla. 2009), 

Cambridge has directly or indirectly misled numerous consumers in the scheme to quiet title 

against mortgagees in various counties within Florida since 2012. 

9. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Cambridge participated directly or indirectly 

through affiliates, agents, servants, employees, or other representatives, in the unfair or deceptive 

acts and practices as set forth herein and/or controlled said acts and practices or has the authority 

to control them. 

10. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Cambridge utilized the telemarketing and 

soliciting activities of third party lead generators or marketers to obtain clients for its business 

operation(s). Cambridge or its affiliates, agents, servants, employees, or other representatives use 

communications technology and/or the mails to solicit or otherwise communicate with 

consumers. 

11. Cambridge, at all times material hereto, provided goods or services within the 

definition of Section 50 1.203(8), Florida Statutes. 

12. Cambridge, at all times material hereto, solicited consumers within the definition 

of Section 50 1.203(7), Florida Statutes. 

13. Cambridge, at all times material hereto, was engaged in a trade or commerce as 

defined by Section 50 1.203(8), Florida Statutes. 
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14. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Cambridge made false promises and 

misrepresentations to consumers in order to induce consumers: (a) to transfer title to their homes 

to Cambridge or its nominee for no or nominal consideration, (b) to pay thousands of dollars in 

advance fees for services that cannot be delivered, and (c) to sign promissory notes to Cambridge 

or its nominee, which notes are secured by security interests or mortgages in favor of Cambridge 

or its nominee. 

15. Cambridge's representations are deceptive, misleading and/or unconscionable, 

because Cambridge's scheme does not bring about the cancelation of a homeowner's duly 

recorded mortgage and the underlying promissory note. 

16. Florida Statutes, Section 65.061(2) provides in part: 

When a person ... not the rightful owner of land has any conveyance or 
other evidence of title ... which may cast a cloud on the title of the real 
owner, or when any person ... is the true and equitable owner of land the 
record title to which is not in the person ... because of the defective 
execution of any deed or mortgage ... when the person ... claims title 
thereto by the defective instrument and the defective instrument was 
apparently made and delivered by the grantor ... or when possession of 
the land has been held by any person . . . adverse to the record owner 
thereof or his or her heirs and assigns until such adverse possession has 
ripened into a good title under the statutes of this state, such person ... 
may file complaint in any county in which any part of the land is 
situated to have the conveyance or other evidence of claim or title 
canceled and the cloud removed from the title and to have his or her title 
quieted .... 

(emphasis added). 

17. In contrast, Florida Statutes Section 697.02 establishes that a "mortgage shall be 

held to be a specific lien on the property therein described, and not a conveyance of the legal 

title or of the right of possession." (emphasis added). 

18. At all times material hereto, Cambridge deceptively, unfairly and/or 

unconscionably solicited, marketed and/or advertised to homeowners in the State of Florida by 
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falsely representing that Cambridge can avoid "upside-down" mortgages and/or foreclosure by 

filing complaints alleging Cambridge or its nominee is a subsequent purchaser for valuable 

consideration in accordance with Florida Statutes Section 70 1.02(1 ), (2). 

19. In making these deceptive, unfair and/or unconscionable representations, 

Cambridge represents to consumers that it can cancel or otherwise void distressed homeowners' 

then current "upside-down" mortgages. 

20. Cambridge deceptively, unfairly and/or unconscionably represents to homeowners 

that their previously recorded mortgages are not enforceable and are void because the mortgages 

were assigned but the assignments were not recorded. This representation is contrary to the 

holding in JP Morgan Chase v. New Millennia!, LC, 6 So. 3d 681, 685 (2nd DCA 2009), review 

dismissed, 10 So. 3d 632 (Fla. 2009), that Chapter 701 does not protect the mortgagor, nor 

anyone "claiming under a mortgagor." 

21. Despite the false and unsubstantiated basis of its claims, Cambridge has misled 

numerous homeowners within Florida since 2012 into using its foreclosure-related rescue 

scheme without providing to homeowners the required written agreements prescribed both in 

form and content by Florida Statutes Sections 501.1377(3)(a), (4) and/or (5). 

22. Through this scheme, Cambridge acquires title to the homeowner's residence 

through a warranty or quitclaim deed which transfers the title of the residence to a land trust or 

other entity under the control of Cambridge. Cambridge does not make any payment or give any 

consideration to the homeowner for the deed transfer of title. Rather, Cambridge requires the 

homeowner to pay an advance fee at the time of the deed transfer, which advance payment 

violates the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 501.1377(3)(b). In addition to the advance fee 

payment, Cambridge requires the homeowner to sign a promissory note to Cambridge or its 
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nominee, which note is secured by a mortgage or security interest in favor of Cambridge or its 

nominee. 

23. Once Cambridge has acquired title to the homeowner's residence, Cambridge 

engages counsel to file litigation to cancel, annul, or otherwise void a homeowner's real estate 

mortgage by use of a land trust and/or the application of the provisions of Chapter 48, Chapter 

65, Chapter 695 and/or Chapter 701, Florida Statutes. Decisions rendered in the U.S. District 

Court, Middle District of Florida, and Palm Beach County Circuit Court have held such litigation 

brought by other land trusts to be frivolous. Examples of such litigation in Florida are: a) 

Fidelity Land Trust Company, LLC v. Centex Home Equity Company, LLC, 2012 WL 5383092 

(M.D. Fla. Nov. 2, 2012); b) Fidelity Land Trust Company, LLC v. Mortgage Electronic 

Registration Systems, Inc., 2012 WL 6720992 (M.D. Fla. Dec. 27, 2012) adopting the Report and 

Recommendation in Fidelity Land Trust Company, LLC v. Mortgage Electronic Registration 

Systems, Inc., 2012 WL 6720994 (M.D. Fla. Dec. 4, 2012); c) Fidelity Land Trust Company, 

LLC v. Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc., 2013 WL 499507 (M.D.' Fla. Feb. 11, 

2013); and d) Fidelity Land Trust as Trustee Under Land Trust No. 000004, dated December 

12, 2011 v. Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc and America's Wholesale Lender, 

Palm Beach County Circuit Case No. 502012CA005543XXXXMBAI. 

24. Cambridge further deceptively, unfairly or unconscionably convinces or 

otherwise deceives the homeowner into transferring the title for the homeowner's residence to 

Cambridge or its nominee for no or nominal consideration and requiring the homeowner to make 

advance payments to Cambridge or its nominee, despite the fact that the Florida homeowner 

remains liable on the homeowner's underlying promissory note secured by the previously 

recorded mortgage. 
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The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC 

25. Defendant The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC ("Hartford") was organized 

under the laws of Florida on or about April 5, 2012 and has maintained a principal place of 

business at 4337 Sea Grape Drive, Lauderdale by the Sea, Florida since its organization. 

According to records filed with the Florida Secretary of State, Hartford's manager/member is 

Defendant Robert J. Vitale. 

26. Hartford acquires title to a Florida homeowner's residence for no or nominal 

consideration through a deed which transfers the title of the residence to Hartford or another 

entity controlled by Defendant Vitale. In transferring title, the Florida homeowner is relying on 

Hartford's direct or indirect representations that Hartford can annul or otherwise cancel the 

homeowner's mortgage. In addition, the homeowner is required to pay directly or indirectly 

advance fees to Hartford. 

27. Hartford's legal basis for the putative cancelation of a homeowner's duly 

recorded mortgage is a frivolous. Despite the clear principles of law of JP Morgan Chase v. New 

Millennia!, LC, 6 So. 3d 681, 685 (2d DCA 2009), review dismissed, 10 So. 3d 632 (Fla. 2009), 

Hartford has directly or indirectly misled numerous consumers in the scheme to quiet title 

against mortgagees in various counties within Florida since 2012. 

28. Subsequent to April 5, 2012, Hartford participated directly or indirectly through 

affiliates, agents, servants, employees, or other representatives, in the unfair or deceptive acts 

and practices as set forth herein and/or controlled said acts and practices or has the authority to 

control them. 

29. Subsequent to April 5, 2012, Hartford utilized the telemarketing and soliciting 

activities of third party lead generators or marketers to obtain clients for its business operation(s). 
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Hartford or its affiliates, agents, servants, employees, or other representatives use 

communications technology and/or the mails to solicit or otherwise communicate with 

consumers. 

30. Hartford, at all times material hereto, provided goods or services within the 

definition of Section 50 1.203(8), Florida Statutes. 

31. Hartford, at all times material hereto, solicited consumers within the definition of 

Section 50 1.203(7), Florida Statutes. 

32. Hartford, at all times material hereto, was engaged in a trade or commerce as 

defined by Section 501.203(8), Florida Statutes. 

33. Subsequent to April 5, 2012, Hartford made false promises and 

misrepresentations to consumers in order to induce consumers: (a) to transfer title to their homes 

to Hartford or its nominee for nor nominal consideration, (b) to pay thousands of dollars in 

advance fees for services that cannot be delivered, and (c) to sign promissory notes to Hartford 

or its nominee, which notes are secured by security interests or mortgages in favor of Hartford or 

its nominee. 

34. Hartford's representations are deceptive, misleading and/or unconscionable, 

because Hartford's scheme does not bring about the cancelation of a homeowner's duly recorded 

mortgage and the underlying promissory note. 

35. Florida Statutes, Section 65.061(2) provides in part: 

When a person ... not the rightful owner of land has any conveyance or 
other evidence of title ... which may cast a cloud on the title of the real 
owner, or when any person ... is the true and equitable owner of land the 
record title to which is not in the person .. . because of the defective 
execution of any deed or mortgage .. . when the person .. . claims title 
thereto by the defective instrument and the defective instrument was 
apparently made and delivered by the grantor ... or when possession of 
the land has been held by any person .. . adverse to the record owner 
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thereof or his or her heirs and assigns until such adverse possession has 
ripened into a good title under the statutes of this state, such person ... 
may file complaint in any county in which any part of the land is 
situated to have the conveyance or other evidence of claim or title 
canceled and the cloud removed from the title and to have his or her title 
quieted .... 

(emphasis added). 

36. In contrast, Florida Statutes Section 697.02 establishes that a "mortgage shall be 

held to be a specific lien on the property therein described, and not a conveyance of the legal 

title or of the right of possession." (emphasis added). 

37. At all times material, Hartford deceptively, unfairly and/or unconscionably 

solicited, marketed and/or advertised to homeowners in the State of Florida by falsely 

representing that Hartford can avoid "upside-down" mortgages and/or foreclosure by filing 

complaints alleging Hartford or its nominee is a subsequent purchaser for valuable consideration 

in accordance with Florida Statutes Section 701.02(1), (2). 

38. In making these deceptive, unfair and/or unconscionable representations, Hartford 

represents to consumers that it can cancel or otherwise void distressed homeowners' then current 

"upside-down" mortgages. 

39. Hartford deceptively, unfairly and/or unconscionably represents to homeowners 

that their previously recorded mortgages are not enforceable and are void because the mortgages 

were assigned but the assignments were not recorded. This representation is contrary to the 

holding in JP Morgan Chase v. New Millennia!, LC, 6 So. 3d 681, 685 (2nd DCA 2009), review 

dismissed, 10 So. 3d 632 (Fla. 2009), that Chapter 701 does not protect the mortgagor, nor 

anyone "claiming under a mortgagor." 

40. Despite the false and unsubstantiated basis of its claims, Hartford has misled 

numerous homeowners within Florida since 2012 into using its foreclosure-related rescue 
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scheme without providing to homeowners the required written agreements prescribed both in 

form and content by Florida Statutes Sections 501.1377(3)(a), (4) and/or (5). 

41. Through this scheme, Hartford acquires title to the homeowner's residence 

through a warranty or quitclaim deed, which transfers the title of the residence to a land trust or 

other entity under the control of Hartford. Hartford does not any make payment or give any 

consideration to the homeowner for the deed transfer of title. Rather, Hartford requires the 

homeowner to pay an advance fee at the time of the deed transfer, which advance payment 

violates the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 501.13 77 (3 )(b). In addition to the advance fee 

payment, Hartford requires the homeowner to sign a promissory note to Hartford or its nominee, 

which note is secured by a mortgage or security interest in favor of Hartford or its nominee. 

42. Once Hartford acquires title to the homeowner's residence, Hartford engages 

counsel to file litigation to cancel, annul, or otherwise void a homeowner's real estate mortgage 

by use of a land trust and/or the application of the provisions of Chapter 48, Chapter 65, Chapter 

695 and/or Chapter 701, Florida Statutes. Decisions rendered in the U.S. District Court, Middle 

District of Florida, and Palm Beach County Circuit Court have held such litigation brought by 

other land trusts to be frivolous. Examples of such litigation in Florida are: a) Fidelity Land 

Trust Company, LLC v. Centex Home Equity Company, LLC, 2012 WL 5383092 (M.D. Fla. 

Nov. 2, 2012); b) Fidelity Land Trust Company, LLC v. Mortgage Electronic Registration 

Systems, Inc., 2012 WL 6720992 (M.D. Fla. Dec. 27, 2012) adopting the Report and 

Recommendation in Fidelity Land Trust Company, LLC v. Mortgage Electronic Registration 

Systems, Inc., 2012 WL 6720994 (M.D. Fla. Dec. 4, 2012); c) Fidelity Land Trust Company, 

LLC v. Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc., 2013 WL 499507 (M.D. Fla. Feb. 11, 

2013); and d) Fidelity Land Trust as Trustee Under Land Trust No. 000004, dated December 
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12, 2011 v. Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc and America's Wholesale Lender, 

Palm Beach County Circuit Court Case No. 502012CA005543XXXXMBAI. 

43. Hartford further deceptively, unfairly or unconscionably convinces or otherwise 

deceives the homeowner into transferring the title for the homeowner's residence to Hartford or 

its nominee for no or nominal consideration and requiring the homeowner to make advance 

payments to Hartford or its nominee, despite the fact that the Florida homeowner remains liable 

on the homeowner's underlying promissory note secured by the previously recorded mortgage. 

Robert J. Vitale 

44. Defendant Robert J. Vitale organized Cambridge and Hartford. 

45. Defendant Robert J. Vitale is the direct or indirect owner and/or manager and/or 

person in control of Cambridge and Hartford or has the authority to control the deceptive acts or 

practices hereinafter described. 

Common Enterprise 

46. Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford operate as a "common 

enterprise" in accordance with interpretations of the Federal Trade Commission and the federal 

courts. Upon information and belief, said Defendants have common control, share office space 

and employees or other personnel, commingle funds, share advertising or other marketing, and 

operate as one enterprise. 

DECEPTIVE ACTS and/or PRACTICES 

47. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and 

Hartford have participated directly or indirectly through their affiliates, agents, servants, 

employees, or other representatives, in the unfair or deceptive acts and practices as set forth 

herein and/or control said acts and practices or have the authority to control them. 
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48. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Defendant Robert J. Vitale had actual knowledge 

or constructive knowledge fairly implied on the basis of objective circumstances that said acts 

and/or omissions and the acts and/or omissions of the employees, affiliates, agents, managers 

and/or representatives of Cambridge and/or Hartford were unfair or deceptive and/or prohibited 

by law. 

COUNT I 
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT 

49. The Attorney General is authorized pursuant to § 501.207(1)(a), Fla. Stat., to 

bring an action to obtain a declaratory judgment that an act or practice violates FDUTP A. 

50. As set forth in paragraphs 1 - 48, which are re-alleged as if fully asserted herein, 

Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford and their above identified affiliated entities 

misrepresent to Florida homeowners that they can, by acquiring the title to the residences of the 

homeowners, cancel or otherwise void the homeowners' previously recorded mortgages while 

they deceive the homeowners into paying thousands of dollars in advance fees and executing 

promissory notes and new mortgages or security interests in favor of Cambridge or Hartford, 

notwithstanding that the Florida homeowners remain liable on the homeowners' underlying 

notes to lenders secured by previously recorded and enforceable mortgages. 

51. The Attorney General contends that Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and 

Hartford deceptively, unfairly and/or unconscionably represent to Florida homeowners that a 

previously recorded mortgage is not enforceable and is void against them or any other third 

party because the mortgage was assigned and/or transferred but the assignment was not 

recorded. 

52. The Attorney General disputes the legal effect of the scheme that Defendants 

advocate and represent to homeowners under Chapter 48, Chapter 65, Chapter 695 and/or 
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Chapter 701, Fla. Stat. or otherwise as a mechanism effective to void the homeowners' mortgage 

obligations to lenders. The Attorney General further contends that the scheme constitutes a 

violation of FDUTP A. The Attorney General therefore seeks a Declaration from this Court as a 

matter of law as to whether the scheme that Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and 

Hartford directly or indirectly advocate and represent to homeowners constitutes an act or 

practice that violates FDUTP A. 

COUNT II 
VIOLATION OF FLORIDA DECEPTIVE AND UNFAIR TRADE PRACTICES ACT 

(Foreclosure-Related Rescue Services) 

53. Plaintiff adopts, incorporates herein and re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 48 as if 

fully set forth hereinafter. 

54. Commencing on a date unknown, but at least subsequent to March 28, 2012, 

Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford have engaged in deceptive and/or unfair 

acts and practices by marketing, representing, and providing and/or offering foreclosure-related 

rescue services and/or foreclosure-rescue transactions to Florida consumers in violation of the 

prohibitions and/or requirements of Florida Statutes Section 501.13 77, including but not limited 

to the advance fee prohibition and the requirement for a written agreement with a rescission 

period. 

55. Commencing on a date unknown, but at least subsequent to March 28, 2012, 

Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford have engaged in a systematic pattern of 

conduct designed and intended to induce consumers to purchase services from them via a series 

of deceptive and/or unfair representations. 
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56. Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford directly or indirectly solicit 

or otherwise market and/or sell to financially distressed consumers foreclosure-related rescue 

services and/or foreclosure-rescue transactions as defined in Florida Statutes Section 501.1377. 

57. Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford require consumers to pay 

up front advance fees for services in violation of Section 501.13 77. 

58. Florida Statutes Section 501.203(3) establishes that a violation of FDUTPA may 

be based upon any of the following as of July 1, 2006: (a) any rules promulgated pursuant to the 

Federal Trade Commission Act; (b) the standards of unfairness and deception set forth and 

interpreted by the Federal Trade Commission or the federal courts; or (c) any law, statute, rule, 

regulation, or ordinance which proscribes unfair methods of competition, or unfair, deceptive, or 

unconscionable acts or practices. 

59. Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford directly or indirectly offer, 

solicit and/or otherwise market foreclosure-related rescue services and/or foreclosure-rescue 

transactions to consumers in violation of Section 501.13 77, Fla. Stat. The violations by 

Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford of Section 501.1377 constitute per se 

violations ofFDUTP A. 

60. Subsequent to December 29, 2010, Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and 

Hartford directly or indirectly solicit, offer and/or render mortgage assistance relief services1 to 

1 Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1015.2 Mortgage Assistance Relief Service means any service, plan, or program, offered or 
provided to the consumer in exchange for consideration, that is represented, expressly or by implication, to assist or 
attempt to assist the consumer with any of the following: 
(1) Stopping, preventing, or postponing any mortgage or deed of trust foreclosure sale for the consumer's dwelling, 
any repossession of the consumer's dwelling, or otherwise saving the consumer's dwelling from foreclosure or 
repossession; 
(2) Negotiating, obtaining, or arranging a modification of any term of a dwelling loan, including a reduction in the 
amount of interest, principal balance, monthly payments, or fees; 
(3) Obtaining any forbearance or modification in the timing of payments from any dwelling loan holder or servicer 
on any dwelling loan; 
(4) Negotiating, obtaining, or arranging any extension of the period of time within which the consumer may: 
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Florida consumers in violation of 16 C.F.R. § 322.1 et seq., the Federal Trade Commission's 

Mortgage Assistance Relief Services Rule ("MARS"). The violations by Defendants Robert J. 

Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford of 16 C.F.R. § 322.1 et seq. constitute per se violations of 

FDUTPA. 

61. Subsequent to March 28, 2012, Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and 

Hartford directly or indirectly demand, charge and/or receive payment from Florida consumers 

for mortgage assistance relief services in violation of 16 C.F .R. § 322.5 of the MARS Rule. The 

violations by Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford of 16 C.F.R. § 322.5 

constitute per se violations of FDUTP A. 

62. As of December 30, 2011, the MARS Rule has been republished at 12 CFR Part 

1015. 16 C.F.R. § 322.1. It is a violation of the MARS Rule for any mortgage assistance relief 

service provider to engage in enumerated conduct, including certain misrepresentations. 

Moreover, a mortgage assistance relief service provider may not receive payment of any fee or 

other consideration until the consumer has executed a written agreement between the consumer 

and the consumer's dwelling loan holder or servicer incorporating the offer of mortgage 

assistance relief the mortgage assistance relief provider obtained from the consumer's dwelling 

loan holder or servicer. Mortgage Assistance Relief Service Provider means any person that 

(i) Cure his or her default on a dwelling loan, 
(ii) Reinstate his or her dwelling loan, 
(iii) Redeem a dwelling, or 
(iv) Exercise any right to reinstate a dwelling loan or redeem a dwelling; 
(5) Obtaining any waiver of an acceleration clause or balloon payment contained in any promissory note or contract 
secured by any dwelling; or 
(6) Negotiating, obtaining or arranging: 
(i) A short sale of a dwelling, 
(ii) A deed-in-lieu offoreclosure, or 
(iii) Any other disposition of a dwelling other than a sale to a third party who is not the dwelling loan holder. 
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provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide, any mortgage assistance relief 

service. 12 C.F.R. § 1015.2. 

63. The violations by Defendants Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford of 12 

C.F.R. Part 1015 constitute per se violations ofFDUTPA. 

64. Section 501.204(1), Fla. Stat., establishes that unfair or deceptive acts or practices 

in the conduct of any trade or commerce are unlawful. As a result of the foregoing, Defendants 

Robert J. Vitale, Cambridge and Hartford have engaged in deceptive or unfair acts or practices 

likely to deceive a consumer acting reasonably in violation of the provisions of Chapter 501, Part 

II ofthe Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Attorney General requests that this Honorable Court enter Judgment 

against Defendants Robert J. Vitale, The Cambridge Land Trust Company, LLC and The 

Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC to: 

A. DECLARE: (i) that the scheme perpetrated by Defendants in marketing and 

selling to consumers a theory for the quiet title complaints that Defendants file in the Circuit 

Courts of the State of Florida is not valid and is erroneous as a matter of law; (ii) that Defendants 

misrepresent to Florida homeowners the effect of complaints to quiet title under Chapter 65, Fla. 

Stat. as a mechanism for avoiding foreclosure and/or mortgages greater than the home's market 

value when there are no conflicting claims of title, only claims oftitle and mortgage lien(s); (iii) 

that Defendants misrepresent to consumers that Defendants can cancel or otherwise void a 

distressed homeowner's previously recorded mortgage; (iv) that Defendants misrepresent that a 

previously recorded mortgage is not enforceable and is void against Defendants or any other 

party because the mortgage was assigned but the assignment was not recorded; and (v) that the 
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foregoing constitute acts and practices that are unfair, deceptive and/or unconscionable m 

violation of FDUTP A. 

B. Permanently ENJOIN Defendants Robert J. Vitale, The Cambridge Land Trust 

Company, LLC and The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC, their officers, affiliates, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them 

who receive actual notice of this injunction, from engaging in, rendering, or otherwise providing 

services to Florida homeowners directly or indirectly by which Defendants claim to cancel or 

otherwise void previously recorded mortgages. 

C. Permanently ENJOIN Defendants Robert J. Vitale, The Cambridge Land Trust 

Company, LLC and The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC, their officers, affiliates, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them 

who receive actual notice of this injunction, from soliciting, advertising, representing or 

otherwise offering to and/or receiving payment from Florida homeowners for services by which 

Defendants claim to cancel or otherwise void previously recorded mortgages. 

D. Permanently ENJOIN Defendants Robert J. Vitale, The Cambridge Land Trust 

Company, LLC and The Hartford Land Trust Company, LLC, their officers, affiliates, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys and those persons in active concert or participation with them 

who receive actual notice of this injunction, from lecturing or otherwise disseminating 

information to the public, for the purpose of trade or commerce, on the mechanism, procedure 

and/or theory by which Defendants claim to cancel or otherwise void previously recorded 

mortgages. 
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E. AWARD such equitable or other relief as is just and appropriate pursuant to 

Section 501.207, Florida Statutes, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of ill gotten gains 

and repatriation of assets necessary to satisfy any judgment. 

F. A WARD restitution to all consumers who are shown to have been injured, 

pursuant to Section 501.207, Florida Statutes. 

G. ASSESS civil penalties in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) as 

prescribed by Section 501.2075, Fla. Stat. or Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) for 

victimized senior citizens as prescribed by Section 501.2077, Fla. Stat. for each act or practice 

found to be in violation of Chapter 501, Part II, of the Florida Statutes. 

H. AWARD attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to Section 501.2075, Fla. Stat. or as 

otherwise authorized by law. 

I. GRANT such other relief as this Honorable Court deems just and proper. 

Dated this 22nd day of August, 2013 
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Respectfully Submitted, 

PAMELA JO BONDI 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

By: Fulvio Joseph en 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
FL BarNo.: 0037493 
Sarah Shullman 
Assistant Attorney General 
FL Bar No.: 888451 
Office of the Attorney General 
Department of Legal Affairs 
110 S.E. 6th Street 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 
(954) 712-4600 
Fulvio.Gentili@myfloridalegal.com 
Sarah.Shullman@myfloridalegal.com 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, 
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, 
DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS, 
STATE OF FLORIDA, 

Plaintiff, 
VS. Case No. 

ROBERT J. VITALE, 
THE CAMBRIDGE LAND TRUST COMPANY, LLC 
and THE HARTFORD LAND TRUST COMPANY, LLC, 

Defendants. 
__________________________________ ! 

DETERMINATION OF PUBLIC INTEREST 

NOW COMES, PAMELA JO BONDI, ATTORNEY GENERAL, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, and states: 

L Pursuant to Section 20.11, Florida Statutes (2012), I am the head ofthe 
Department of Legal Affairs, State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as the Department). 

2. In this matter, the Department seeks a declaration, injunctive relief and/or other 
relief on behalf of one or more consumers caused by an act or practice performed in violation of 
Chapter 501, Part II, Florida Statutes. 

3. I have reviewed this matter and I have determined that an enforcement action 
serves the public interest. 

~ 
PAMELAJO ONDI 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

EXHIBIT 

A 


